

Grant Thornton

Onet Thornton Audit Lin

Co. 1610: Name A Appained Utilinia

di associal

poli CERROT-TIT

p

2023.04.05 12:19:53 +02'00'

Annual report

company

Sarantis Czech Republic, s. r. o.

for the year 2022

Content

- Results and development of the company
- Audit report
- Balance sheet as of 31. 12. 2022
- Profit and loss statement as of 31, 12, 2022
- Notes to Financial statements as of 31. 12. 2022 including cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity
- Report on relations

Basic information

Company: Sarantis Czech Republic, s. r. o.

Seat: Praha 3, Žerotínova 1133/32, PSČ 130 00

Legal form: Limited liability company

ID: 25705971

Established: 29th October 1998

Registration: business register maintained by Municipal Court in Prague, section C, insert

62867

Result and development of the company

The company Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. The company occupies an important place among distributors of mass cosmetics and household goods in the Czech Republic. Our customers are national chains, wholesalers and retailers. In 2015, the company took over the distribution of Astrid products and significantly expanded the distribution of goods from the Conter supplier - Denim, Strep, Tesori d'Oriente and Vidal brands. In 2016, the company established cooperation with Tereza Maxová, who became the ambassador of the Astrid brand. New ambassador of the brand is a model Pavlína Němcová. In 2022, the company continued to present its Astrid brand through television commercials in the Czech Republic.

Another important brand of the company is the STR8 brand in the men's cosmetics category, which was also supported by a television campaign in 2022.

In the category of household and cooking utensils, the company is represented by FINO brand products, which were presented in print and digital campaigns with the support of the brand's ambassador - Karolína Kamberská, a successful cookbook author. Massive TV campaign is planned for next years.

A significant milestone for the company was the year 2018, when the Indulona brand was purchased by the Sarantis group. The company Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. became a distributor of these brands on the domestic market in 2018.

Generally, the company tries to keep its growth strategy, both through new acquisitions such as the purchase or Indulona or Astrid brands, as well as organic growth in sales of the existing product portfolio. This strategy is successfully implemented by the company.

The average recalculated number of employees in 2022 is 47 people.

Future development

The goal of company is to become one of the most important players on the market in the field of mass cosmetics and household needs on the Czech market.

In 2023, the company plans to keep its market position despite of the negative macroeconomic outlook and continue to intensively support the Astrid brand in the media (several waves of television campaigns, digital support throughout the year, PR activities, press campaigns accompanied by a massive presentation of samples).





Significant marketing support will also be given to the men's cosmetics brand STR8, which in 2019 came up with a modern re-design of products and launched a completely new line of antiperspirants and shower gels. In 2023 the brand comes with new line called STR8 Game.

The Indulona brand will also continue to be supported by a television campaign that refers to the brand's more than 70-year history, while communicating the brand's traditional values in a modern and fresh style.

Environmental activities

According to Act No. 477/2001 Coll. about packaging Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. contract with EKO-KOM, a.s. and ENVI-PAK, a.s.

Research and development acticities

The company Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. does not perform any development of products directly. The new products are developed in cooperation with Group or suppliers and only according to the current legislative of the Czech Republic and the EU, so that they are environmentally friendly.

Information on labour relations

The company Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. employs citizens of the Czech Republic and other member states of the European Union.

Information about organizational unit of the company abroad

The company Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. does not have an organizational unit abroad.

There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.

The company has not any litigation, administrative dispute or arbitration proceedings with significant impact.

The most important indicators, performances and figures on the company's business activities are part of the company's financial statements, which are attached to this annual report.

In Prague on 15.3.2023

Krzysztof Jan Kaminsk Statutory representative

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the partner of

Sarantis Czech Republic, s. r. o.
Ilmited Ilability company with registered capital of CZK 39 320 000
Registered Address: Žerotinova 1133/32, Žižkov, 130 00 Praha 3
Company Identification Number (IČ): 25705971

Auditor's Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sarantis Czech Republic s.r.o. (hereinafter also the "Company") prepared in accordance International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union, showing a balance sheet total of 302 368 thds. CZK and a profit of 75 952 thds. CZK. These financial statements comprise statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, and Auditing Standards of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended by the related application clauses. Our responsibilities under these laws and regulations are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information presented in the Annual Report

In compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon. Managing Director is responsible for the other information.

The electronic version of this document can be deemed as reliable and legally binding only if accompanied by a qualified auditor's certificate. This is a translation of the original Czech Auditor's Report on the accompanying financial statements. Therefore, in the event of any inconsistency between the English and the Czech version, the Czech version shall prevail.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we assess whether the other information has been prepared, in all material aspects, in accordance with applicable law or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies with law or regulation in terms of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence judgements made on the basis of the other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:

- The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is, in all material aspects, consistent with the financial statements; and
- The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company obtained in the audit, that the other information does not contain any material misstatement of fact. Based on the procedures we have performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified any material misstatement of fact.

Responsibilities of the Company's Managing Director (hereinafter also "Company's statutory body") for the Financial Statements

Company's statutory body is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic and for such internal control as the statutory body determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Company's statutory body is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing in the notes to the financial statements, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Company's statutory body either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the above mentioned regulations will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The electronic version of this document can be deemed as reliable and legally binding only if accompanied by a qualified auditor's certificate This is a translation of the original Czech Auditor's Report on the accompanying financial statements. Therefore, in the event of any inconsistency between the English and the Czech version, the Czech version shall prevail.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Company's statutory body in the notes to the financial statements.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the statutory body's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Company's statutory body regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and our significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies identified in the internal controls.

Prague on 03.04. 2023

Grant Threnton Charlet Grant Thornton Audit s.r.o.

Pujmanové 1753/10a, 140 00 Praha 4 - Nusle

Licence No. 603

Ing. Leoš Horváth

Auditor, Licence No. 2013

Stronton Augustonio

The electronic version of this document can be deemed as reliable and legally binding only if accompanied by a qualified auditor's certificate. This is a translation of the original Czech Auditor's Report on the accompanying financial statements. Therefore, in the event of any inconsistency between the English and the Czech version, the Czech version shall prevail.

Financial Statement of Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Contents:

	nent of financial position as at 31 December 2022	
Stater	nent of profit or loss	4
Cash	Flow statement	5
Stater	nent of changes in equity	ნ
ADDI 1	TIONAL INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS	7
The g	eneral information	7
1.	Basis for the preparation of the report and accounting principles	
2.	Property plant and equipment	
3.	Intangible fixed assets	28
4.	Investment in associated companies	
5.	Inventories	30
6.	Trade receivables and other receivables	
7.	Other receivables	
8.	Related party transaction	32
9.	Deferred costs and accruals	
10.	Cash and cash equivalents	
11.	Assets classified as held for sale	
12.	Share capital	35
13.	Retained profits and limitations connected with capital	
14.	Suggested division of profit for 2022	35
15.	Other reserves	
16.	Deferred tax	
17.	Lease liabilities	
18.	Right-of-Use Assets	37
19.	Short-term trade and other payables	
20.	Tax liabilities	
21.	Other liabilities	38
22.	Accruals and deferred income	
23.	Sales revenue	
24.	Other operating income	
25.	Raw materials and consumables used	
26.	Services	
27.	Employee benefit expenses	40
28.	Other expenses	40
29.	Financial costs and revenues	
30.	Income tax	
31.	Credit risk management	41
32.	Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities	
33.	Bank guarantees	43
34.	Capital management	44
35.	Contingent assets and liabilities	
36.	Tax settlements	
37.	Structure of employment	44
38.	Key management personnel compensation	
39	Events after date of balance sheet day	45

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

	Note	31/12/2022	31/12/2021
ASSETS			
Non-current assets			
Property, plant and equipment	2	6 989	9 688
Intangible assets	3	29 855	30 490
Other non-current assets		573	573
Non-current assets		37 417	40 751
Current assets			
Inventories	5	124 446	108 847
Trade receivables	6	95 898	72 470
Other receivables	7	1 964	520
Accruals and deferred costs	9	8 409	11 455
Cash and cash equivalents	10	34 234	48 103
Current assets		264 951	241 395
TOTAL ASSETS		302 368	282 146
LIABILITIES			
Non-current liabilities			
Lease liabilities	17	2 329	5 116
Deferred tax liability	16	4 748	5 163
Non-current liabilities		7 077	10 279
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	19	113 243	103 615
Lease liabilities	17	4 376	3 862
Tax liabilities	20	5 077	9 795
Other liabilities	21	10 152	6 428
Accruals and deferred income	22	17 436	6 920
Current liabilities		150 284	130 620
TOTAL LIABILITIES		157 361	140 899
NET ASSETS		145 007	141 247
EQUITY			20 252
Share capital	12	39 320	39 320
Other reserves	15	3 932	3 932
Retained earnings	13	101 755	97 995
TOTAL EQUITY		145 007	141 247
Λ			

Statutory representative: Krzysztof Jan Kaminski

Statement of profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December 2022

	Note	31/12/2022	31/12/2021
Revenue	23	859 917	735 181
Other operating income	24	16 313	6 256
Raw materials and consumables used	25	480 735	398 060
Services	26	236 931	201 238
Depreciation and amortisation expense		6 142	6 173
Employee benefit expenses	27	48 478	43 184
Other expenses	28	8 106	3 396
Finance income	29	5 815	5 808
Finance expense	29	7 602	6 248
PROFIT BEFORE TAX		94 051	88 946
Tax expense	30	18 099	16 754
PROFIT OR LOSS		75 952	72 192

Statutory representative: Krzysztof Jan Kaminski

Cash Flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2022

	31/12/2022	31/12/2021
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period	48 103	63 459
Cash flows from Operating Activities	67 610	102 926
Profit before Tax	94 051	88 946
Adjustments:		
Depreciation & amortization	6 142	6 173
Plus/minus adjustments for changes in working capital accounts	-15 483	17 284
Decrease / (increase) in receivables	-24 872	18 910
Decrease / (increase) in inventories	-15 599	22 061
Decrease / (increase) in transitional assets accounts	3 046	-5 303
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities (other than to banks)	11 426	-15 939
(Decrease) / increase in transitional liability accounts	10 516	-2 445
Interest income and other related income	-140	-1
Interest expense and other related expenses	4 346	4 163
Tax Paid	-21 306	-13 639
Cash flows from Investment Activities	-2 668	-7 695
Interest received	140	1
Revenues from sale of tangible and intangible assets		
Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets	-2 808	-7 696
Dividends received		
Cash flows from Financial Activities	-78 811	-110 587
Interest paid	-4 346	-4 163
Dividends paid	-72 192	-109 208
Inflows/ (Outflows) loans		
Inflows/ (Outflows) from leases	-2 273	2 784
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period	34 234	48 103

Statutory representative: Krzysztof Jarf Kaminski

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

	Share capital	Share premium account	Other reserve fund	Retained earnings	Total equity
Balance 1/1/2021	39 320		3 932	135 011	178 263
Profit for the period Other equity changes				72 192	72 192
Dividend paid to shareholders				-109 208	-109 208 0
Balance 31/12/2021	39 320		3 932	97 995	141 247
Profit for the period Other equity changes				75 952	75 952
Dividend paid to shareholders				-72 192	-72 192
Balance 31/12/2022	39 320		3 932	101 755	145 007

Statutory representative: Krzysztof lan Kaminski

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS

The general information

1. Name, address, the basic object of the activity of the Company

The company Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. hereinafter referred to as statement "Company", is an important distributor of mass cosmetics and household products on the market of Czech Republic. The Company's customers are international retail chains and local retailers and wholesalers.

The Company was registered on 29.10.1998 by the Municipal Court in Prague, section C, insert 62867.

Company ID 25705971

Company address

Žerotinova 1133/32 130 00 Prague 3 - Žižkov

2. Statutory representatives of the Company

On 31 December 2022 the statutory representative of the Company is: Krzysztof Jan Kaminski

The Company is represented by the statutory representative. The Company has one statutory representative.

3. Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is not obligatory for limited liability companies and was not established.

4. Statutory auditor

Grant Thornton Audit s.r.o. Budova Parkview Pujmanové 1753/10a 140 00 Prague

5. Name of the parent company

GRIGORIS SARANTIS ANONYMI VIOMICHANIKI & EMPORIKI ETAIRIA KALLYNTIKON ENDYMATON OIKIAKON & PHARMAKEFTIKON EIDONGR, hereinafter GR Sarantis SA

Address: 15125 Marousi, Amarousiou - Halandriou 26, Greece

Registration: 72405

Legal form: Limited liability company

Share: 100%

6. Principles of presentation

Information on principles adopted for preparation of financial statement for 2022

The financial statement has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles contained in the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union. The financial statement covers the period from 1 January to 31 December 2022 and the comparative period from 1 January to 31 December 2021.

The financial statement is compliant with all IFRS requirements adopted by the EU and present a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, results of its activity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

7. Statement of the Statutory representative

- 1) The statutory representative of Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. hereby honestly and sincerely declares that to the best of its knowledge the foregoing financial statement and comparative data were prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union (IFRS). The statement reflects true and fair view on financial position and its financial result of Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. and that the statutory representative commentary on the Company's operations presents true overview of Company's development, achievement and business situation of Company, including basic risks and exposures.
- 2) The statutory representative of Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. declares that the entity, authorized to audit and conduct the audit of financial statements, was selected in compliance with the law and that entity and auditors conducting the audit met the conditions to issue an independent opinion in compliance with relevant regulations of the domestic law.

1. Basis for the preparation of the report and accounting principles

First time adoption

The financial statement for the period 1 January to 31 December 2020 was the Company's first financial statement prepared in accordance with IFRSs, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 December 2019, the entity prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with Czech Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (the "Czech GAAP").

Basic of the financial statement

Financial statement of Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o. is prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards adopted by European Union. The statement was prepared assuming that the company will continue its activity in the nearest future. On the day in which this statement was accepted there is no circumstances indicating any danger to continue of business activity of Company.

Consolidated financial statement

Consolidated financial statement, which includes also subsidiary entities is performed by highest level parent company GR Sarantis SA, based in Athens, Greece.

The consolidated financial statement, the audit report by the certified auditor and the management report of the Board of Directors of GR SARANTIS S.A. are being presented on the address:

https://sarantisgroup.com/investor-relations/financial-briefing/results-release/

Accounting period

The Financial statements are reported for period of 12 months from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. Comparative data relates to period of 12 months from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Functional currency and presentation currency of financial statements

The financial statement is presented in thousands of Czech Crowns. The Czech crown is a functional and reporting currency of the Company.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Company's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognized and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are presented separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements:

Estimation of the useful life of assets

The Company value the useful lives of tangible and intangible fixed assets. These estimates shall be reviewed at least on a yearly basis taking into account new circumstances and market conditions.

Assets with right of use

The Company's most significant estimates regarding right of use assets relate to the determination of the existence of leases in specific transactions, the terms of renewal of leases and the determination of the discount rate.

Provision for income tax

The income tax provision under IAS 12 "Income Taxes" relates to the amounts of taxes that are expected to be paid to the tax authorities and includes the provision for current income tax and the provision for any additional taxes that may arise as a result of control by the tax authorities.

Income tax expense may differ from these estimates due to changes in tax legislation, significant changes in the laws or unforeseen consequences from the final determination of the tax liability of each fiscal year by the tax authorities. These changes may have an impact on the Company's financial position. In the event, that the resulting additional taxes are different from the amounts initially recorded, these differences will affect income tax and deferred tax provisions in the use that has been made to determine tax differences.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of their acquisition cost and their net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business of the Company less the estimated cost necessary to make the sale. The management makes estimates for the calculation of any provision for impairment of inventories, including, but not limited to, the maturity of inventories, their movement through use, planning for the next period, and an estimate of the future selling price.

Provisions for expected credit losses from customer receivables and contract assets

The Company applies the simplified approach of IFRS 9 for the calculation of expected credit losses, according to which the provision for impairment is always measured at the amount of the expected credit losses over the life of the receivables from customers. At each balance sheet date, the historical percentages used and the estimates of the future financial situation are updated.

The correlation between the historical data, the future financial situation and the expected credit losses includes significant estimates. The amount of expected credit losses depends to a large extent on the changes in the conditions and forecasts of the future financial situation. In addition, past experience and forecasts for the future may not lead to conclusions indicative of the actual amount of customer default in the future

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are presented at acquisition cost minus accumulated depreciations and possible impairment losses. The acquisition cost includes all expenses directly attributed to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent expenses are registered as in increase of the asset book value or as a separate fixed asset, only to the extent where such expenses increase the future economic benefits expected to arise from the use of the fixed

assets, and the cost of such may be reliably calculated. The cost of repairs and maintenance is registered in the results of the period where such are realized.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated (amortized) using the straight-line method and impairment losses. The depreciation is reported in Statement of profit or loss under the line "Depreciation and amortization expense". The costs of current maintenance of assets affect the financial result of the period in which they were incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment starts since when it is available for use that means it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating. The beginning of the depreciation starts not later than one month after acquisition date and follows in the manner intended by the management, over the period reflecting their estimated economic useful life. The correctness of applied periods, depreciation methods and residual value of fixed assets is verified on each balance sheet day and respective adjustments are made if it is necessary.

The following types of useful life are used for fixed assets:

Buildings and constructions 30 years

Machinery and equipment 3 - 5 years

Vehicles and others 5 years

If there have been events or changes which indicate that the carrying amount of fixed assets may not be recoverable, the assets are analyzed. If there are indications of impairment, the company makes estimation of recoverable amounts of particular assets. Loss is included if accounting value of asset is higher than estimated recoverable value.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment reflects the higher of the following values: net selling price and value in use. Impairment allowances are recognized as other operating costs in the profit and loss.

Profit and loss resulting from the removal tangible fixed asset from the balance sheet are calculated as difference between net incomes from disposal, and balance sheet value and shown as income or cost in the profit and loss account.

Investment property

The Company does not hold any investment property.

Leases

For each contract concluded on or after January 1, 2019, the Company decides whether the contract is or includes leasing according to IFRS 16. Leasing is defined as a contract or part of a contract that delegates the right to control the use of an identified asset (underlying asset) for a given period in exchange for consideration. To this reason, three basic aspects are analyzed:

- whether the contract relates to an identified asset that is either clearly specified in the contract or implicitly when the asset is made available to the Company,
- whether the Company has the right to obtain substantially all economic benefits from the use of the asset over the entire useful life to the extent specified in the contract,
- whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset over the entire useful life.

At the commencement date, the Company recognizes an asset under the right of use and a liability under the lease. The right of use is initially measured at the purchase price consisting of the initial value of the lease liability, initial

direct costs, an estimate of the costs expected in connection with the dismantling of the underlying asset and the lease payments paid on or before the start date, less leasing incentives.

The Company depreciates use rights on a straight-line basis from the start date until the end of the useful life period or the end of the lease term, depending on which of these dates is earlier. If there are indications, the rights to use are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the value of the lease liability consist of fixed lease payments, variable lease payments dependent on the index or rate, amounts expected to be paid as a guaranteed residual value and payments for call options if they are reasonably certain.

In subsequent periods, the lease liability is reduced by repayments made and increased by accrued interest. The valuation of the lease liability is updated to reflect changes in the contract and the reassessment of the lease term, exercise of the call option, guaranteed residual value or lease payments dependent on the index or rate. In principle, the revaluation of the liability is recognized as an adjustment to the asset due to the right of use. The company uses practical standards approved for short-term leasing and leasing in which the underlying asset is of low value. For such contracts, lease payments are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company presents right of use in the same items of the statement of financial position as the underlying assets, i.e. in tangible fixed assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that expected future economic benefits, which are directly attributable to the assets, will cause increase of entity. Initially intangible assets are stated at acquisition or construction cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at acquisition or construction cost less amortization and impairment allowances. Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized when it is available for use that is when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management over their estimated economic useful life. The correctness of the applied amortization periods and rates is periodically reviewed, at least at the end of the reporting year, and potential adjustments to amortization allowances are made in the subsequent periods. Intangibles with indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation. Their value is reduced by potential impairment allowances.

Amortization of intangible asset is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation is reported in Statement of profit or loss under the line "Depreciation and amortization expense". The standard economic useful lives for amortization of intangible assets are following:

Acquired licenses, patents, and similar intangible assets 5 - 50 years Acquired computer software 5 years

Other intangible assets are verified in terms of impairment allowances at the end of each reporting period. If there are indications of impairment, and the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the value of those assets or the related cash-generating units is decreased to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of those assets is the higher of the following values net selling price or their value in use.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the contractual characteristics of the cash flows of the financial asset and the business model of the Company for the management. Receivables from customers that do not have a significant financial component are valued at the transaction price determined in accordance with IFRS 15.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- (a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
- (b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
- (c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;
- (d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- (e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in profit or loss.

A financial asset is derecognized primarily when:

- . The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have undertaken to fully pay the cash flows received without significant delay to a third party under a pass-through agreement and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the Company has not transferred or held substantially all the risks and estimates of the asset but have transferred the control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from an asset or have entered into a transfer agreement, they assess whether and to what extent they own the risks and rewards of ownership.

When the Company has not transferred or hold substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset and have not transferred ownership of the asset, they continue to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continued involvement. In this case, the Company also recognizes any relevant obligation. The transferred asset and the related liability are valued on the basis of the rights and obligations that the Company holds.

Financial assets at amortized cost

The Company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met: (a) the financial asset is retained in a business model in order to hold financial assets for the collection of contractual cash

flows; and (b) the contractual clauses of the financial asset generate cash flows on specific dates that consist only of capital and interest payments on the balance of the original capital.

Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Trade receivables

Receivables from customers are recognized when there is an unconditional right to receive the consideration for the client's contractual obligations to the entity. A contract asset is recognized when the Company has satisfied their obligations to the customer before the customer pays or before the payment is due, for example when the goods or services are transferred to the customer prior to the Company's right to issue an invoice. Receivables from customers on credit are initially recognized at their fair value, which corresponds to the nominal value, net of impairment losses.

Regarding non-doubtful trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of IFRS 9 and calculate the expected credit losses over the life of the receivables. For this purpose, the Company uses a maturity forecast table based on the historical data for credit losses, adjusted for future factors in relation to borrowers and the economic environment. The bad debts are evaluated one by one for the calculation of the relevant provision. The amount of the provision is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liability and effective interest method

An instrument is classified as a financial liability if it is:

- A contractual obligation:
 - To deliver cash or other financial assets; or
 - To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under potentially unfavorable conditions (for the issuer of the instrument); or
- A contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instrument and is:
 - A non-derivative that comprises an obligation to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments; or
 - A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the entity exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost calculated under the effective interest method except for liabilities:

- Measured at FVTPL
- That arise when a transfer of a financial assets does not qualify for derecognition or is accounted for using the continuity involvement approach;
- That are commitments to provide a loan at a bellow-market interest rate and not measured at FVTPL; and
- That are financial guarantee contracts

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of financial assets or financial liability and allocating the interest income or expense over the relevant period. It differs from the straight -line method in that the amortization under the effective interest method reflect a constant periodic return on the carrying amount of the asset or liability.

The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. It is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of financial instruments to:

- The gross carrying amount on the financial asset; or
- · The amortized cost of the financial liability

On initial recognition, the gross carrying amount on financial asset, or the amortized cost of a financial liability, is generally equal to fair value of the instrument, adjusted for transaction costs.

The effective interest rate is revised as a result of :

- Periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest
- Fair value hedge adjustment at the date on which an entity begins to amortize them; and
- It appears, costs and fees arising as part of modifications that do not result in derecognition.

To calculate interest income or expense in each relevant period, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (or amortized cost of credit-impaired assets) or the amortized costs of the liability.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, considering any inventory allowances. The net realizable value is the selling price estimated in the ordinary course of business activity less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated selling costs.

Cost of goods sold is determined based on the weighted average costs formula.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash includes cash in hand and cash at the bank. Cash equivalent are short-term high liquid investments, convertible to known amounts of cash and exposed to small risk of change of the value. Cash is valuated in the nominal value in accordance with the fair value.

Accruals and deferred costs

Accruals and deferred expense/cost is an asset that represents either:

- a deferred expense is a cost that has already been incurred, but which has not yet been consumed.
- an accrued income, that has been earned, but has yet to be received. The accrued income is recognized
 when it is earned in accordance with accrual accounting method.

Accruals and deferred income

Accruals and deferred income is a liability that represents either:

 an accrued expense, which are payments that a company is obligated to pay in the future for which goods and services have already been delivered.

a deferred income is unearned revenue, when company receives payment from a customer before the product or service has been delivered.

Revenues

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized in the amount that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for the transfer of the goods or services to a customer.

Revenue is defined as the amount that an entity expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for the goods or services it has transferred to a client, except for amounts collected on behalf of third parties (value added tax, other sales tax). Variable amounts are included in the consideration and are calculated using either the "expected value" method or the "most likely amount" method.

The Company recognizes revenue when (or as it) meets the obligation to execute a contract by transferring the goods or services promised to the customer. The customer acquires control of the good or service if the customer is able to direct the use and derive virtually all the economic benefits from that good or service.

The Company's revenue is derived from selling goods with revenue recognized at point of time. This is generally when the goods are delivered to the customer. However, for export sales, control might also be transferred when delivered either to the port of departure or port of arrival, depending on the specific terms of the contract with a customer. There is limited judgement needed in identifying the point control passes: once physical delivery of the products to the agreed location has occurred, the Company no longer has physical possession, usually will have a present right to payment (as a single payment on delivery) and retains none of the significant risks and rewards of the goods in question.

The Company is active in the production and distribution of consumer products. The main products of the Company and the Group are perfumes, personal care products, sunscreen products, hair care products as well as food packaging products, plastic garbage bags and household cleaning products. Net proceeds from sales are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are declared net of discounts on sales and the consideration paid to customers. These are, in particular, incentives to promote sales which are recorded as deductions from sales. The incentives deducted from sales comprise of contractual discounts, promotional discounts and all trade expenses (fixed bonuses, performance bonuses, logistic bonuses, marketing bonuses etc.), that are provided to customers in a form of an issued credit note.

The goods sold by the Company do not include any special warranty or right of return except the standard rights, that are given by general local legislation. The Company does not record any separate performance obligation in this respect.

The customer receivable is recognized when there is an unconditional right for the entity to receive the consideration for the contractual obligations performed to the customer. A contract asset is recognized when the Company has satisfied its obligations to the customer before the customer pays or before the payment is due, for example when the goods or services are transferred to the customer prior to the Company's right to issue an invoice. The Company

applies the practical expedient, where the interval between transfer of the promised goods or services and payment by the customer is expected to be less than 12 months, then there is no financing component.

The contract liability is recognized when the Company receives a consideration from the client (prepayment) or when it retains the right to a price that is unconditional (deferred income) before performing the obligations of the contract and the transfer of the goods or services. The contractual obligation is de-recognized when the contractual obligations are executed and the income is recorded in the income statement.

Classification of revenue is as follows:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when the Group delivers the property and risks associated with the ownership of the goods to the customers, the goods are accepted by them and the collection of the receivable is reasonably assured. The transaction price is therefore allocated to the revenue from sale of goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate.

Equity capital

Equity capital is divided by the types accordance with low rights and resolutions of Company Statute.

Share capital is presented in the nominal value, in the amount according to the Company Statute and entry in the commercial register. Declared but no made contributions are included by due contributions to the initial capital. Own founds of the Company are decreased by due contributions to the share capital.

Non-divided profits for the previous years are presented in the financial statement as the retained profits. Current results (profits) are presented in the financial statement as retained profits.

Reserve fund is reported as a part of equity and represents legal reserve fund. Based on the Commercial Code, the Company was obliged to contribute to the legal reserve fund from the annual approved profit. Currently the Company is not obliged to further contribute the legal reserve fund.

Transactions in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are carried out in accordance with exchange rate:

- 1) used in fact in this day, resulted from character of operation, in case of sale or purchase of currencies and incoming and outgoing payments,
- Czech National Bank official daily rate, published for particular currency, if the use of the exchange rate as in point 1 above is not possible and for the all other operations.

Exchange rate differences and evaluations of financial assets and liabilities on the balance sheet date, in accordance with Czech National Bank exchange rate on this day, are presented as financial costs or incomes in the profit and loss account.

Non-cash assets and liabilities, included in accordance with historical cost expressed in foreign currency are presented with historical exchange rate from the transaction day. Non-cash assets and liabilities included in accordance with fair value, expressed in foreign currency are calculated by exchange rate from the valuation day. Exchange rate differences resulting from clearance of transactions in foreign currencies and valuation of assets and liabilities in cash on the balance sheet day are presented as financial costs or income in statement of complete income in net amount.

For the balance valuation, the following exchange rates were adopted:

Exchange rate at the day	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
USD	22,616	21,951
EUR	24,115	24,860
PLN	5,152	5,408

Income tax

The income tax includes current part and deferred part. Current and deferred income tax is included in profit or loss of current period, except the case, when it regards to merger of companies and items included immediately in equity or as other total income.

Current tax is an expecting amount of liabilities or receivables from income tax which have to be taxed for particular year, calculated with the use of tax rates, legally or actually binding as of the reporting day and corrections of tax liability regarding previous years.

Deferred tax is included in connection with temporary differences between balance sheet value of assets and liabilities and their value calculated for tax purposes. Deferred tax is not included in following cases:

- temporary differences resulted from initial presentation of assets or liabilities resulting from the transaction which is not a merger of companies and has not any influence for profit and loss of current period and for taxable income,
- temporary differences resulted from the investments in affiliated companies to the extent in which there is no
 possibility to sell it in the foreseeable future,
- temporary differences resulted from the initial presentation of goodwill.

Deferred tax is valued with the use of tax rates, which in accordance with expectations are going to be used when the temporary differences will be reversed - legally or actually tax rules binding up to reporting day are the base of this.

Assets and provisions for deferred tax are compensated when the company has possibility to execute legal title to conduct the compensation of current tax assets and provisions, subject to the assets and provisions for deferred tax regarding to the income tax, imposed by the same tax authority on the same tax payer or different tax payers, which are going to settle assets and provisions for deferred tax in net amount or at the same time to realize receivables and settle the liabilities.

Component of assets, from deferred tax for the purpose of transfer not settled amount tax loss and not used income tax relief and negative temporary differences, is included to the extent in which there is a possibility to have future income to tax, which allows for deduction of them.

Assets for deferred tax are reviewed as of the reporting day and they are reduced according to the possibility of generation profits in income tax, connected with them.

Employee benefit expenses

Employee benefits are recognized as an expense on an accrual basis. The employee benefit expenses comprise of gross salaries, social and health insurance paid by employer, other employee benefits and untaken holiday. The untaken holiday is calculated per individual employee as number of untaken hours as of closing date multiplied by average gross salary of the employee and attributable social and health insurance expense paid by employer.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are defined as obligations that arise from past events and which are dependent on occurrence or non-occurrence of some uncertain future events. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the balance sheet however the information on contingent liabilities is disclosed unless the probability of outflow of resources relating to economic benefits is remote.

Application of the accounting principles

The above principles are applicable also for comparative data.

Impact of new Standards and interpretations on the Company's financial statements

Changes in standards or interpretations in force and applied by the company since 2022.

The following new or amended standards become effective from 1 January 2022, but did not have any material impact on the Company's financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognizes such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

Annual Improvements to IFRS accounting standards 2018 – 2020 Cycle

The amendments are related to four standards, IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, IAS 41

The amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a) can now also elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount that

would be included in the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS Accounting Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a).

The amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments clarifies that in applying the '10 per cent' test to assess whether to derecognize a financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

The amendment to IFRS 16 Leases removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

The amendment to IAS 41 Agriculture removes the requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement.

Standards and Interpretations issued by the IASB that are not yet effective

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has prepared new standards and the amendments of current IFRS's with effect for the next year. We briefly inform about these new standards and amendments with their description, which have been published but have not yet effective. The Company is currently investigating impact of the new standards and amendments on its financial statements. The Company does not believe these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the financial statements once adopted.

You can see the list of amendments below:

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Making materiality judgements
- Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates
- Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted as long as IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are also applied.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Making materiality judgements

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term 'significant accounting policies' with 'material accounting policy information'. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

The IASB has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the 'four-step materiality process' described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted by the IASB and are applied prospectively.

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 1 was issued on 12 February 2021. The amendments are designed to clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Accounting estimates are defined as "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty".

The amendments to IAS 8 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a lease.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted by the IASB.

Standards and Interpretations issued by the IASB that are not yet endorsed

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has prepared new standards, interpretation and the amendments of current IFRS's that is not approved as of the date of 31 December 2022. You can see the list of amendments below:

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent
- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Non-Current liabilities with covenants
- Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
- Amendments IFRS 16 Leases Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The IASB has issued Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-current, which relate only to the recognition of liabilities in the statement of financial position (not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, or the information that entities disclose about those items). The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 and are to be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments:

- clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that are in
 existence at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in all affected paragraphs to refer to the
 "right" to defer settlement by at least twelve months and make explicit that only rights in place "at the end
 of the reporting period" should affect the classification of a liability,
- clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, and
- make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Non-current liabilities with Covenants

The amendments to IAS 1 published in October 2022 specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting period affect the entity's right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the classification of the liability as current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the entity's financial position at the reporting date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date).

The amendments to IAS 1 are applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a safe or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application of the amendments is permitted by the IASB.

Amendments IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be accounted for as a sale.

The amendments require the seller-lessee to determine 'lease payments' or 'revised lease payments' such that the seller-lessee does not recognize a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date. The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognized by the seller-lessee relating to the partial or full termination of a lease.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is permitted.

2.	² roperty	plant and	equipment
----	----------------------	-----------	-----------

	31. 12.2022	31. 12.2021
Equipment and machinery	362	344
Furniture	•	-
ROU Vehicles	3 128	4 288
ROU Buildings	3 499	5 056
Tangible FA under construction	-	•
Total property plant and equipment	6 989	9 688

Changes of property plant and equipment were following in 2022:

	ROU	Equipment and	ROU Vehicles		Tangible FA	
Gross value	Buildings	machinery	701110100	under Furniture construction		Total
Balance 1 January 2022	10 381	4 480	9 672	560		25 093
Increases: acquisition	161	308	2 249	-	_	2 718
Decreases: Disposals	-	-876	-336	-303	-	-1 515
Balance 31 December 2022	10 542	3 912	11 585	257	a	26 296

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss	ROU Buildings	Equipment and machinery	ROU Transportation Means	Furniture	Tangible FA under construction	Total
Balance 1 January 2022	5 325	4 136	5 384	560	-	15 405
Increases:	###	- Control of the Cont				
depreciation for the year	1 718	290	3 073	-	-	5 081
Decreases:						
disposals	•	-876	•	-303	•	-1 179
Balance 31 December 2022	7 043	3 550	8 457	257	*	19 307

Net accounting value:

as at 31st December 2021	5 056	344	4 288	•	*	9 688
as at 31st December 2022	3 499	362	3 128	-	-	6 989

In 2022, the Company did not make any changes to depreciation periods.

Changes of property plant and equipment were following in 2021:

One are evelow	ROU	Equipment and	ROU Vehicles		Tangible FA	
Gross value	Buildings	machinery	***************************************	under Furniture construction		Total
Balance 1 January 2021	5 685	4 250	7 756	560	•	18 251
Increases:	**************************************	The second secon	MITTING COLUMNIA POR SANGER	und leeken miliid ilisaan saadaa ka saa daa		******************************
acquisition	5 057	230	2 771	-	-	8 058
Decreases:						
Disposals	-361	•	-855		-	-1 216
Balance 31 December 2021	10 381	4 480	9 672	560	•	25 093

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss	ROU Buildings	Equipment and machinery	ROU Transportation Means	Furniture	Tangible FA under construction	Total
Balance 1 January 2021	3 651	3 755	3 131	560	•	11 137
Increases:		***************************************			***************************************	***************************************
depreciation for the year	1 674	341	3 108	7	-	5 123
Decreases:						
disposals	•	-	-855	-	-	-855
Balance 31 December 2021	5 325	4 136	5 384	560	TERMEN CONTROL OF THE SECOND CONTROL OF THE	15 405
Net accounting value:						
as at 31st December 2020	2 034	455	4 625	-	₩	7 114
as at 31st December 2021	5 056	344	4 288	-	_	9 688

In 2021, the Company did not make any changes to depreciation periods.

3. Intangible fixed assets		
	31. 12.2022	31, 12,2021
Computer software	6 625	6 707
Property rights	23 230	23 783
Total intangible fixed assets	29 855	30 490

Property rights are represented by exclusive distribution contract for Astrid products. The distribution contract was owned by Henkel ČR, spol. s r.o. and related rights were transferred to the Company in 2014. Useful live of this property right was set at 50 years.

Changes of intangible fixed assets were following in 2022

Gross value	Computer software	Property rights Astrid	Total
Balance 1 January 2022	11 754	27 655	39 409
Increases: Acquisition	425	-	425
Decreases: Disposals	_	-	
Balance 31 December 2022	12 179	27 655	39 834
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss	Computer software	Property rights Astrid	Total
Balance 1 January 2022	5 047	3 872	8 919
Increases:	4		
depreciation for the year	507	553	1 060
Decreases:			
disposals	•	•	•
Balance 31 December 2022	5 554	4 425	9 979
Net accounting value:			
as at 31st December 2021	6 707	23 783	30 490
as at 31st December 2022	6 625	23 230	29 855

In 2022, the Company did not make any changes to depreciation periods.

Changes of intangible fixed assets were following in 2021

Gross value	Computer software	Property rights Astrid	Total
Balance 1 January 2021	11 754	27 655	39 409
Increases: Acquisition	_	•	_
Decreases: Disposals	-	-	
Balance 31 December 2021	11 754	27 655	39 409
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss	Computer software	Property rights Astrid	Total

impairment ioss	•	Astrid	
Balance 1 January 2021	4 550	3 318	7 868
Increases:			
depreciation for the year	497	554	1 051
Decreases:			
disposals	-	•	-
Balance 31 December 2021	5 047	3 872	8 919

Net accounting value:

as at 31st December 2020	7 204	24 336	31 541
as at 31st December 2021	6 707	23 783	30 490

In 2021, the Company did not make any changes to depreciation periods.

4. Investment in associated companies

The company does not hold any share in associated companies.

The company held 100% share in Saneca Trade CZ, s.r.o. until 31.12.2018. Effective 1.1.2019 Saneca Trade CZ, s.r.o. was merged with the company and dissolved at the same time.

5. Inventories

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Merchandise in warehouse incl. provision	113 839	98 909
Packaging	1 274	1 163
Merchandise in transfer	9 333	8 775
Advances for the delivery of goods	•	-
	124 446	108 847

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 has been not established any pledge on the inventories to secure the Company's liabilities. There was write-off on damaged or unsalable inventories in 2022 of TCZK 3 214 (2021 – TCZK 2 473).

The Company has recorded, in line with internal policies, an adjustment to inventory of TCZK 2 173 as of 31 December 2022 and an adjustment of 1 223 TCZK as of 31 December 2021.

Movements regarding the inventory provision were following:

	2022	2021
Beginning of a period	1 223	1 322
Increases	2 173	1 223
Usage	1 223	1 322
Decreases – reversal	•	-
At the end of a period	2 173	1 223

6. Trade receivables and other receivables

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Trade receivables domestic	77 789	70 355
Trade receivables foreign	14 370	928
Trade receivables from related parties	100	480
Trade receivables from other entities	5 081	1 909
Provision for bad debts on trade receivables	-1 442	-1 202
Short-term receivables	95 898	72 470

Trade receivables are interest-free and their term of payment is 14 - 60 days. The Company has recorded, in line with internal policies, a bad debt provision of TCZK 1 442 as of 31 December 2022 (2021: TCZK 1 202).

Movements regarding provision for bad debts were following:

	2022	2021
Beginning of a period	1 202	2 794
Increases	240	
Usage	•	-128
Decreases – reversal	•	-1 464
At the end of a period	1 442	1 202

Below is an analysis of trade receivables as at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 in respect of the overdue receivables. The balances are stated before compensation against relevant trade payables and accrual for trade expenses. Negative balances represent credit notes not yet matched with open trade receivables.

Overdue, but recoverable

Year	Total	Not overdue	< 30 days	30 - 60 days	60 - 90 days	90 -120 days	> 120 days
2022	161 870	127 154	22 160	5 240	4 633	1 112	1 571
2021	111 800	101 669	6 809	2 803	645	-	-126

Expected loss rates are based on the historical credit losses of the Company, that occurred during the three-year period before the end of the period. Historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and future information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Company's customers.

The tables below present the credit risk analysis of the Company:

Trade receivables	Current	0 - 60 days	60 - 90 days	90 -120 days	> 120 days
Total trade receivables	127 154	27 400	4 633	1 112	1 571
Expected credit loss	636	247	97	89	374
% of expected credit loss	0,5%	0,9%	2,1%	8,0%	23,8%

Currency structure of short-term trade receivables and other receivables

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Receivables in the local currency	84 518	72 678
Receivables in the foreign currency	12 822	994
	97 340	73 672
	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Receivables in EUR	12 709	981
Receivables in PLN	113	13
Receivables in CZK	84 518	72 678
	97 340	73 672

The Company's credit risk, connected with trade receivables is very limited due to the high number of the customers. The key customers are international chains.

7. Other receivables

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Paid advances for rent	817	514
Paid advances for services	-	-
VAT receivable	1 145	
Other	2	6
	1 964	520

8. Related party transaction

The Company's transactions with related parties comprise mainly from sale and purchase of goods. The purchases and sales were made at market prices. Minor part of the transactions with related parties belong to services and license fee charges.

Receivables from related parties	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
GR. Sarantis SA, Greece	5	78
Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd.	26	1
Sarantis Polska SA	21	84
Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o.	14	-
Astrid T.M., a.s.	30	-
Sarantis Romania SA	4	204
Ergopack LLC, Ukraine	-	112
	100	479

Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.2022 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 38 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 38 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 17 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	21 57 9 49 45 - 16 57 58
Liabilities to related parties 31.12.2022 31.12.203 GR. Sarantis SA, Greece 46710 30.88 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. Sarantis Polipack SA 5194 15. Sarantis Polska SA 8470 10.14 Sarantis Romania SA -4 Astrid T.M., a.s. 4279 25. Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1577 128 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 18 G6 242 46 48 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.203 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 136 Sarantis Polska SA 225 136 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Romania SA 59 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	21 57 9 49 45 - 16 57 58 91
Liabilities to related parties 31.12.2022 31.12.202 GR. Sarantis SA, Greece 46 710 30 80 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. - Sarantis Polipack SA 5 194 1 50 Sarantis Romania SA -4 Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 279 2 50 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 28 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 18 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.202 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 3 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 33 Sarantis Bulgaria d.d. 80 3 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 5 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 11 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	21 57 9 49 45 - 16 57 58 91
Liabilities to related parties GR. Sarantis SA, Greece GR. Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. Sarantis Polipack SA Sarantis Polipack SA Sarantis Polska SA Sarantis Romania SA Astrid T.M., a.s. Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. Income from sales and other revenue GR. Sarantis SA Geece Sarantis SA Greece Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. Ergopack LLC, Ukraine Sarantis Romania SA Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	21 57 9 49 45 - 16 57 58 91
GR. Sarantis SA, Greece 46 710 30 88 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. - Sarantis Polipack SA 5 194 1 5-7 Sarantis Polska SA 8 470 10 1-8 Sarantis Romania SA -4 4 279 2 5-7 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 25 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 16 16 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.202 31.12.202 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 3 3 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 36 3 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 1 36 3 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 3 3 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 6 6 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 17 3 3 Sarantis Romania SA 59 3 3 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	57 9 49 45 - 16 57 58 91
Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. - Sarantis Polipack SA 5 194 1 5 5 5 194 Sarantis Polska SA 8 470 10 1 4 5 5 194 Sarantis Romania SA -4 -4 Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 279 2 5 5 194 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 22 5 194 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 18 194 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.202 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 3 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	9 49 45 - 16 57 58 91
Sarantis Polipack SA 5 194 1 5 5 5 194 Sarantis Polska SA 8 470 10 1 4 5 5 194 Sarantis Romania SA -4 -4 Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 279 2 5 5 194 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 25 194 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 15 194 Income from sales and other revenue 3 1 12 202 3 1 12 202 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 3 1 30 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	49 45 - 16 57 58 91
Sarantis Polska SA 8 470 10 14 Sarantis Romania SA -4 Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 279 2 57 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 25 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 15 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.202 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 3 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 36 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 38 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 5 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 11 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	45 - 16 57 58 91
Sarantis Romania SA -4 Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 279 2 50 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 25 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 16 66 242 46 45 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.202 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 3 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 36 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 36 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 6 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 17 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 96	16 57 58 91
Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 279 2 5 5 5 8 1 5 7 1 2 5 5 7 1 2 5 5 7 1 2 5 7 1	57 58 91 21
Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 1 577 1 28 Sarantis Hungary kft 16 18 Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.2022 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 38 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 38 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 14 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	57 58 91 21
Sarantis Hungary kft	58 91 21
Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.2022 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 36 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 36 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 1 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	91
Income from sales and other revenue 31.12.2022 31.12.2022 GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 36 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 36 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 17 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	21
GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 38 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 38 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 17 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	
GR. Sarantis SA Greece 95 Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 38 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 38 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 17 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	
Sarantis Belgrade d.o.o. 836 1 38 Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 38 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 1 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	90
Sarantis Polska SA 225 1 35 Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 5 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 12 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	
Sarantis Hungary kft 358 Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 Sarantis Romania SA 59 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	95
Sarantis Bulgaria Ltd. 80 8 Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 1 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 98	59
Ergopack LLC, Ukraine 139 13 Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	-
Sarantis Romania SA 59 33 Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	51
Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 85 311 19 95	16
	39
	56
87 103 23 30	06
Purchases of goods and services 31.12.2022 31.12.202	21
GR. Sarantis SA Greece 175 721 132 61	15
	05
	68
Sarantis Polipak SP z.o.o. 30 388 15 25	52
Sarantis Polska SA 42 644 43 05	54
	36
Sarantis Romania SA 1 004	-
	14
Astrid T.M., a.s. 4 787 3 77	
Sarantis Slovakia, s.r.o. 15 713 9 60	/2
270 934 204 82	

9. Deferred costs and accruals

Deferred costs	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
IT services	94	227
Marketing services	•	381
Other	513	92
	607	700
Accrued revenues - assets	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Services to subsidiaries	7 801	5 288
Other	1	
Compensation for marketing support Denim	_	5 467
	7 802	10 755
10. Cash and cash equivalents		
	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Cash in hand	10	10
Cash in banks	34 224	48 093
Vouchers		H
	34 234	48 103
	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
In local currency	27 945	44 506
In foreign currency	6 289	3 587
	34 234	48 103
	31.12.2022	31,12,2021
Cash in EUR	3 721	2 208
Cash in USD	1 761	854
Cash in PLN	807	525
	6 289	3 587

Right to dispose with the cash funds does not have any limitation, except the cash on deposit account of 3 922 TCZK.

11. Assets classified as held for sale

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not identify any assets as held for sale.

12. Share capital

Share capital of Sarantis Czech Republic, s.r.o., a.s. on 31 of December 2022 is 39 320 TCZK and comprises of: 100% share owned by GR Sarantis S.A.

Share capital has been paid in whole amount.

On December 30, 2019, there was a merger of GR Sarantis Cyprus Ltd with GR Sarantis S.A. As a result of this merger, GR Sarantis S.A. became the sole shareholder of the Company.

13. Retained profits and limitations connected with capital

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Profits retained from the previous years	26 580	26 580
Other profit/loss from previous years	<i>-</i> 777	-777
Net profit in current period	75 952	72 192
Total retained profits	101 755	97 995

According to the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Net profit for the period 2021 was distributed as dividend in 2022.

14. Suggested division of profit for 2022

The Statutory representative proposes a net profit for 2022, in amount of 75 952 TCZK, allocate:

- in the amount of 75 952 TCZK - to distribute as dividend

15. Other reserves

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Legal reserve fund	3 932	3 932
	3 932	3 932

16. Deferred tax

	Assets		Liabilities		Net	
	2022	2021	2022	2021	2022	2021
Fixed assets	-	**	5 575	5 746	- 5 575	-5 746
Receivables	274	229	_	-	274	229
Inventories	413	232	*		413	232
Provisions & Other	140	122	•	•	140	122
Tax losses carried forward	_	-	*	-	_	*
Deferred tax asset/(liability)	827	583	5 575	5 746	-4 748	-5 163

In accordance with the accounting policy, a tax rate of 19% was used to calculate deferred tax as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

17. Lease liabilities

As at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company reports only lease liabilities, divided into the long term part and short term part.

Short term	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Lease liability – transportation means	2 624	2 364
Lease liability – building	1 752	1 498
Total short term liability	4 376	3 862
Long term	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Lease liability – transportation means	541	1 706
Lease liability – building	1 788	3 410
Total long term liability	2 329	5 116

Future minimum lease payments remaining as at the balance sheet date might be analyzed as follows:

Lease payments payable in the period:

As of 31.12.2022	Up to 1 year	From 1 to 5 years	Over 5 years	Total
Lease liability – transportation means	2 624	541	_	3 165
Lease liability – building	1 752	1 788	-	3 540
Current value	4 376	2 329	•	6 705

18. Right-of-Use Assets

The value of property, plant and equipment includes right-of-use assets with the following carrying amount that relate to the following classes of underlying assets and which were subject to the following depreciation charges in 2022:

The underlying asset class	Carrying amount of the right of use	Depreciation of the right of use
	31.12.2022	from 01.01 to 31.12.2022
ROU Buildings	3 499	1 718
ROU Transportation means	3 128	3 073
Total	6 627	4 791

19. Short-term trade and other payables

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Trade payables to related parties	66 242	46 491
Trade payables domestic	13 582	31 588
Trade payables foreign	33 419	25 536
Other llabilities		-
Total short-term liabilities	113 243	103 615

Trade payables are interest-free and usually settled within 14 - 90 days.

Currency structure of short-term liabilities

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Liabilities in local currency	11 932	26 895
Liabilities in foreign currency	101 311	76 720
	113 243	103 615

20. Tax liabilities

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Corporate income tax	4 688	7 481
Personal income tax – withheld from wages	389	359
VAT payable	-	1 812
Other tax payable	•	143
	5 077	9 795

Payable related to corporate income tax was compensated against advances paid to corporate income tax and the company report net balance.

21	04	ha=	Hab	. 1116	ioe
/3	4 27	ner	нап		H 35

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Payroll liabilities	5 071	4 518
Other liabilities - negative balances reclass	5 081	1 910
	10 152	6 428

The payroll liabilities include provision for untaken holiday.

22. Accruals and deferred income

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Accrued marketing expenses	13 553	4 329
Accrued operational expenses	2 664	2 076
Other accrued expenses	1 219	515
	17 436	6 920

23. Sales revenue		
	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Revenue from goods sales – domestic	759 976	704 100
Revenue from goods sales – foreign	88 519	25 452
Recharged services	11 422	5 629
	859 917	735 181
•	to a series of the series of t	enanciii (ii caestaenaneee ee
24. Other operating income		
	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Recharge of operational expenses to related parties	7 801	5 288
Sale of pallets	•	707
Inventory surplus	468	62
Revenues from released liabilities	6 473	-
Other reinvoicing and inventory revenues	1 571	199
	16 313	6 256
05 B		
25. Raw materials and consumables used	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Cost of goods sold	468 297	382 263
Energy consumption	406 297 685	362 263
Samples and testers	2 861	8 408
Stands and pallets	5 237	4 115
Office consumption	572	443
Fuel consumption	2 217	1 703
Other material consumption	866	741
	480 735	398 060
26. Services	***************************************	
20. Services	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Marketing and advertising costs		
Trade expenses	60 021 132 623	46 801
Warehousing costs		112 418 13 028
Fransportation	12 656 11 511	
Contractors expenses		9 800
Hospitality	5 734	6 226
T external services	764 2 273	530 2 222
egal, audit and advisory services		
License fee	231	203
Merchandising services	4 265 1 331	3 772
Travel expenses		1 196
Other external services	1 056 4 466	679 4 363
-	236 931	201 238
=		EVI EVV

27. Employee benefit expenses

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Gross salaries	35 464	31 697
Social and health insurance	12 283	10 853
Other employee benefits	731	634
	48 478	43 184

Average number of employees in 2022 was 47 (in 2021 number of employees was 46).

Other employee benefits include contributions to employees, that are allowed by local legislation. Key part of the other benefits is meal contribution.

28. Other expenses

31.12.2022	31.12.2021
17	73
2 730	1 594
1 190	-1 692
245	216
3 214	2 473
120	432
-	128
590	172
8 106	3 396
	17 2 730 1 190 245 3 214 120 - 590

The contractual penalties include penalties charged by customers for non-delivered goods and penalties charged by suppliers.

29. Financial costs and revenues

Financial revenue	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Interest revenue	140	1
FX gains on currency conversion	5 675	5 807
Others financial revenue	•	-
	5 815	5 808
Financial costs	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Financial bonuses - customers	3 996	3 867
Bank commissions, charges	396	333
FX losses on currency conversion	3 055	1 909
Interest expense on lease liabilities	155	139
	7 602	6 248

30. Income tax

Major components of income tax for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Current income tax	18 595	16 795
Creation/ reversal of deferred tax	- 415	29
Corrections of income tax from the previous years	-81	-70
Income tax shown in the profit and loss account	18 099	16 754

The difference between the amount of income tax shown in the profit and loss account and the amount calculated on the basic of tax rate is resulting from the following items:

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Gross financial results	94 051	88 946
The amount of the tax according to the tax rate 19%	17 870	16 900
- correction of income tax from previous years	-81	-70
- tax effects of utilization tax losses	•	-
- tax effects of costs and revenues not tax effective	310	-76
Current income tax	18 099	16 754
Effective tax rate	19,2%	18,8%

31. Credit risk management

The overall objective of the Company's market risk management is to reduce the volatility of cash flows and potential economic losses caused by the events that may have a negative impact on the individual. Market risk management includes identification, measurement and definition of risk mitigation, including aspects related to currency exchange rates and interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit exposure is monitored currently according with the credit policy realized by the Company. As of 31 December 2022, the Statutory representative considers that there is not significant credit risk, because of the great number of customers. The key customers are stable multinational chains and important local wholesalers. Part of the trade receivables is also covered by a credit insurance.

The Company applies simplified approach of IFRS 9 for calculation of expected credit losses for trade receivables across their total life. Expected loss rates are based on the historical credit losses of the Company that occurred during the three-year period before the end of the period. Historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and future information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Company's customers. The expected loss rates are not applied to related party receivables.

For all financial assets the carrying amount represents the maximum exposure to credit loss.

Bad debt provision was booked to cover general risks related credit management.

Exchange rate risk

Transactions of purchase goods in foreign currency are the main sources of exchange rate risk. Significant part of trade payables is in foreign currency specially in EUR. The sales are generally conducted in domestic functional currency – Czech crown.

Financial results might be impacted by significant EUR exchange rate fluctuations. The company did not conclude any hedge instruments in line with group policy.

Sensitivity of financial results to EUR, PLN and USD exchange rates fluctuations which are rationally possible is presented bellow:

Financial instrument in TCZK	Accounting value of financial instrument	Average exchange rate in 2021	Influence on financial results	Influence on equity	Influence on financial results	Influence on equity
			Increase by 10%	Increase by 10%	Decrease by 10%	Decrease by 10%
Assets denominated in currency:						
EUR	16 430	24,565	1 643	1 643	-1 643	-1 643
PLN	920	5,245	92	92	-92	-92
USD	1 761	23,36	176	176	-176	-176
Liabilities denominated in currency:						
EUR	97 981	24,565	-9 798	-9 798	9 798	9 798
PLN	813	5,245	-81	-81	81	81
USD	2 517	23,36	-252	-252	252	252
Total			-8 220	-8 220	8 220	8 220

Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk arising from the relationship of current liabilities to current assets. The Company manages and regularly monitors its working capital in order to minimize any possible liquidity and cash flow risks. The management monthly receives analysis of aged receivables and aged payables including cash flow projection for next period.

Generally, operating activities of the Company are carried out under the assumption of maintaining a constant excess of liquidity.

In the opinion of the Statutory representative, because of a significant amount of cash on the balance sheet date, good standing of the Company's financial result and aged structure of trade receivables, the liquidity risk should be assessed as insignificant.

Enclosed is an analysis of trade payables as at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 in respect of the overdue payables. The balances are stated before compensation against relevant trade receivables.

Liabilities due in the period

Year	Total	Not overdue	< 30 days	30 - 60 days	60 - 90 days	90 -120 days	> 120 days
2022	142 960	130 823	6 104	2 435	•	-	3 598
2021	113 354	101 790	7 528	1 993	53	-	1 990

Price risk

Price of purchased goods is a component which has a major impact on the total profitability of Company. The price of the goods depends on global prices of production materials and also transportation prices.

Selling prices realized mainly on the domestic retail market are quite stable, which is driven by stable competition on the domestic market.

The Company regularly monitors the profitability of individual products and on the basis of these data takes action related to the optimization of the purchase price or the sale of products.

32. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The tables below present the change from liabilities arising from financing activities:

	Lease liability	Total
Balance 1 January 2022	8 978	8 978
Cash transactions - repayments	-2 273	-2 273
Non-cash transactions	-	-
Balance 31 December 2022	6 705	6 705

33. Bank guarantees

Československá Obchodní banka, a.s. provided to the Company bank guarantees in value of 605 TUSD as of December 31, 2022. The bank guarantees relate to deliveries from China, that are secured by Letter of Credits.

34. Capital management

The Company monitors capital which comprises all components of equity, i.e. share capital, other reserves and retained earnings. The main purpose of Company capital management is retaining a good credit rating and safe capital indexes, which will support operational activity of the Company and increase value for its shareholders. For the purpose of retaining or correcting of capital structure, the company can regulate the dividend payment for shareholders or return the capital to shareholders.

35. Contingent assets and liabilities

As at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company does not have any contingent assets or liabilities.

36. Tax settlements

Regulations regarding VAT, corporate and personal income tax, social insurance contributions are liable to frequent changes. As a result, there are often no references to recorded regulations or legal precedents. Regulations which are in force are ambiguous, causing differences in opinions about legal interpretations of tax regulations between bodies of state administration and companies. Tax settlements and other settlements can be a subject of control conducted by bodies of state administration, which are able to impose significant fines, and additional liabilities may be charged with interest. These facts create tax risk in Czech Republic which is higher than in countries with more stabilized tax systems. Tax settlements may be subject to inspection for a period of three years from the end of the year in which the tax was due. The period might be significantly prolonged under certain conditions, i.e. utilization of tax losses. As a result of inspections, the existing tax settlements may be subject to additional tax liabilities.

37. Structure of employment

	31.12.2022	31.12.2021
Management	6	5
Sales and marketing	25	25
Administration	16	16
	47	46

38. Key management personnel compensation

Members of management were not provided with any compensation beyond the scope of the employment contracts. There were also no payments in form of company's shares and no specific benefits.

39. Events after date of balance sheet day

The Company's management is not aware of any events that have occurred since the balance sheet date that would have any material impact on the financial statements as at 31 December 2022.

The company's management has also assessed the current international situation, in particular the ongoing war in Ukraine, sanctions imposed on Russia, the collapse of Sberbank, the significant increase in commodity prices, etc. and concluded that the Financial statements as at 31 December 2022 do not require additional adjustments to the valuation of fixed assets, inventories, receivables and provisions.

Date:

15 March 2023



Representative:

Krzysztof Jan Kaminski, statutory executive bytem 83-112 Lubiszewo, ul. Sportowa 1 Polská republika

